
CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

DECEMBER 1, 2020 – OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, December 1, 2020 to order at 7:09 p.m.  
Present were Councilors Ken Warpula, Doug Hammerseng, Jim Zajicek and MaryAnn Hallstein.  Also 
present was City Attorney Jay Squires, City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor Jason 
Doboszenski, and Accountant Jackie Heinz.  Guests included Chad Brink and Tom Douglas. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the agenda, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Hagen added Res No 12-01-20-109 – Appointing Tyler Gearin to Fire Department 
Warpula thanked Brian Gronsberg for his 18 Years of Service to the Fire Department 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Warpula. 

a. Approve Minutes of November 13, 2020 Special City Council Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of November 17, 2020 City Council Work Session Meeting 
c. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $   810,554.97 
 Payroll   $       9,789.36 
 P/R taxes & Exp $       3,904.52 
 Other Claims  $       2,665.06 
 Total Claims     $   826,913.91 

d. Res No 12-01-20-106 – Recognizing Brian Gronsberg Resignation 
e. Res No 12-01-20-109 – Appointing Tyler Gearin to Fire Department 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum: 
None 
 
Public Hearings: 
 2020 Truth in Taxation Presentation and Public Comment 
Hagen conducted the annual Truth in Taxation presentation to provide education to the residents on the 
City Budget and to offer an opportunity for public comment and questions. 
Tom Douglas – Hanover Resident 
Douglas stated his value keeps increasing, however no improvements have been made to the property.  
Hagen stated to contact the Wright County Assessor and attend the Local Board of Appeals Meeting 
during the council meeting on the first Tuesday in April. 
 
Unfinished Business: 
None  
 
New Business: 
 Res No 12-01-20-107 - Approving Variance for 10940 4th Street NE 
Hagen stated the request is for Big Bore BBQ and Chad is in attendance this evening.  Hagen further stated 
a memo is provided by Cindy, the variance was reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved.  The 
variance is for a roof over the outdoor cooker, the lots will be combined, and the outdoor seating is not 



included in this variance.  Kauffman inquired the variance is for 4’, Hagen stated yes.  Kauffman stated 
the variance is conditional upon the lot combination, Hagen stated yes, we do have the property 
descriptions and the new roof will follow the existing roof line.  Hammerseng asked Brink to discuss the 
finished product.  Brink stated the beams will be wood with a steel, low sloping roof to carry the water to 
the west, the new portion will look the same as the existing.  Hagen stated no new impervious surface is 
being added. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve Res No 12-01-20-107, seconded by Hallstein.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Res No 12-01-20-108 – Adopting 2021 Final Budget & Levy 
Hagen stated there were no changes from the last version.  Hammerseng inquired about the new firetruck 
being purchased.  Hagen stated that purchase will be coming out of capital and thanked Hammerseng for 
the idea of prepaying as it is saving the city $22,000.00. 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve Res No 12-01-20-108, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Review: 2021 Fee Schedule 
Hagen stated included in the packet if the first draft of the 2021 fee schedule, items in red are proposed 
changes or need to be discussed.  The first item being sanitization fees due to COVID-19.  Kauffman 
stated hopefully it is not a permanent charge, suggested naming it a pandemic fee.  Hallstein suggested a 
sanitization fee so it is not specific to one thing.  Hagen stated before COVID-19 the city paid for cleanings 
after events, post pandemic the city is being charged $130.00 per special cleaning and this is being split 
with the renter, for the future do we pass off the full cost to the renter.  Zajicek stated COVID-19 is not 
going away, the sanitization fee should be left on.  Hammerseng agreed with Hallstein to call it a 
sanitization fee, Warpula also agreed.  Kauffman inquired if every rental will be charged or as required.  
Hagen stated currently every rental is being charged, if there is one event booked per week, the weekly 
city hall cleaning would cover the event cleaning, but if two events in a row, who pays for the special 
cleaning.   
 
Hagen inquired about groups with monthly meetings in the hall.  Zajicek inquired about having the groups 
clean after they are done.  Hagen stated he is not sure all groups would do the cleaning and do it well.  
Hallstein stated it varies per group, the city has saved for a few months, not a big cost for the city to absorb 
and pay back to the community groups.  Hagen stated there will be no more deputy fees and inquired 
about organization exempt from rental fees.  Hammerseng stated to not list the exempt organizations on 
the fee schedule.   
 
Hagen inquired about a funeral rate for the shelter, the current rate for a funeral in the hall with no alcohol 
is $100.00.  Hagen further stated due to COVID-19 a lot of people opted to use the shelter over the summer 
for funerals.  Hammerseng inquired if the renters used only the shelter portion or the kitchen as well.  
Hagen stated they rented the full facility including the kitchen for the full normal fee.  Kauffman suggested 
charging $75.00 for the shelter.  Hammerseng inquired the difference between renting the hall and the 
shelter, Hagen stated the hall has a far better kitchen with tables and chairs versus picnic tables.   
 
Hagen stated septic system authority has been moved to the county and staff has decided to revamp the 
escrow fees by combining three into one, now all the money can be used for any of the three categories.  
Hagen further stated St. Michael is increasing their connection fees by 2%, we typically do the same.  
Hallstein stated we aren’t collecting enough based on depreciation.  Hagen stated correct, we typically fall 
behind and should have more money in the bank to minimize bonding.  Hallstein suggested looking at the 



sewer and water connection fees closer in the future and suggested a slight increase on our end to start 
capturing money now. 
 
Hagen stated utility rates in St. Michael and Albertville are increasing about 2%.  Kauffman stated to 
follow their lead. Hagen stated under planning and zoning the non-used or not needed fees were eliminated 
and escrows are being combined for simplicity.  Hagen further stated Wright County added liquor license 
fees and those will be paid directly to Wright County. 
 
FD Officer Interview Format 
 Hagen stated last year Mayor Kauffman and Councilor Hammerseng sat in on the interviews, 
wondering if full council wants to participate which now becomes a public meeting.  Kauffman inquired 
if it could be a closed public meeting, Squires stated it is public, and must be open.  Kauffman stated that 
may be awkward, then candidates could sit in and watch other candidates’ interviews.  Hallstein stated 
she is okay with 2 council members and have them pass the information on.  Hammerseng inquired when 
the interviews would take place, Hagen stated ideally before Christmas, officers would then be appointed 
at the first meeting in January.  Hallstein inquired if the interviews would take place via zoom, Hagen 
stated yes.  Kauffman suggested council members Hammerseng and Hallstein to conduct the interviews.   
 
Reports  
Doboszenski 

• Inquired if it was okay to put the Christmas Decorations on the poles, council consensus yes 
• Inquired is it was okay to have ice rinks this winter, council consensus yes 
• Two repairs have been made to 15th street, the asphalt blew out and we should anticipate more 

problems.  Kauffman inquired the cause of the problems, Doboszenski stated compaction was not 
good, too much rain after grading and Knife River not waiting.  Hagen stated there is a 2-year 
warranty from when we accept.  Doboszenski stated the bike trail is good. 

Zajicek 
• Inquired about installation of a handrail along the trail from the Historical Bridge, south to 19.  

Doboszenski stated it wouldn’t be easy to do and there are no steps and now it not the time of year 
for installation. 

Hagen 
• The preliminary review will be at the next meeting for appointments and will finalize at the 1-19-

2021 meeting. 
• An application for Bill’s Superette and G-Will Liquors concept plan was submitted, included is a 

concept plan and traffic study regarding site access.  Hallstein inquired if Hennepin County gave 
feedback on tax abatement.  Hagen stated the applicant has sat at the site and stated access is 
needed and is proposing more than normal, they will apply for tax abatement. 

 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 8:23 p.m., seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 


